
           
OFFICIAL AGENDA

TUESDAY August 12, 2025
Meeting Start Time: 9:00 a.m.

Board of County Commissioners
Yellowstone County, Montana

Stillwater Building
316 N. 26th Street, Room 3108

Billings, MT
8:45 a.m. Agenda Setting 

           

Pledge to the Flag: Moment of Silence: Minutes
REGULAR AGENDA

9:00 a.m. PRESENTATION

PROMOTIONS
      Deputy Sheriff Kelso Promoted to Detective
      Deputy Sheriff Bidlake Promoted to Detective  
 

 

9:00 a.m. BID OPENING

Bid Opening for Yellowstone County Legal Advertising
 

 

9:00 a.m. PUBLIC HEARING

Resolution 25-96 to Change Fee Schedule for the Fuego Fire Service Area
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON REGULAR, CONSENT AND FILED AGENDA ITEMS

 

CLAIMS

 CONSENT AGENDA 

1. COMMISSIONERS  

a. Board Appointment - Sharon Cline to Yellowstone County Museum Board  
b. Term Extension for ARPA Grant Letter  
c. MACo Property and Casualty Agent Appointment and Agreement

 
 

2. FINANCE  

a. Notice of Award - MetraPark 6th Ave LED Sign IFB  
b. Request to Expend - Facilities - Ostlund Building Elevator Repairs  
c. Resolution 25-97 to Create RSID 916M to Maintain Dry Hydrant in Clark Stone Commercial

Subdivision
 

d. Contract Amendment - As Built Updates - Cushing Terrell
 

 



3. METRA PARK  

Metra Trust Check Log for June 2025
 

 

4. PUBLIC WORKS  

On-Call Contract with Performance Engineering for Right of Way Inspection 
 

 

5. SHERIFF  

Revised Summit Foods Pricing Agreement Effective 7/1/25
 

 

6. HUMAN RESOURCES  

a. Accusource Agreement  
b. Benefit Report Letters  
c. PERSONNEL ACTION REPORTS - District Court - 1 Appointment, Human Resources - 1

Appointment; Sheriff's Office - 1 Termination: Youth Services Center - 1 Salary & Other
 

 FILE ITEMS 

1. AUDITOR  

Payroll Audit
 

 

2. CLERK AND RECORDER  

a. Board Minutes - County Water District of Billings Heights  
b. Montana Department of Revenue Certified Taxable Values

 
 

3. CLERK OF DISTRICT COURT  

Checks and Disbursements for July 2025
 

 

4. HUMAN RESOURCES  

July 16 - July 31 Payroll Audit
 

 

5. PUBLIC WORKS  

Material Contract with Fisher Sand & Gravel  

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON COUNTY BUSINESS

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Sheriff's Office Promotions
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
PROMOTIONS
      Deputy Sheriff Kelso Promoted to Detective
      Deputy Sheriff Bidlake Promoted to Detective  
 

BACKGROUND:
N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
N/A 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Bid Opening for Yellowstone County Legal Advertising
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Bid Opening for Yellowstone County Legal Advertising
 

BACKGROUND:
N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Refer the bids to staff for recommendation back to the BOCC.



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Resolution to Change Fee Schedule for the Fuego Fire Service Area
Submitted By: Steve Williams

TOPIC:
Resolution 25-96 to Change Fee Schedule for the Fuego Fire Service Area
 

BACKGROUND:
The Fuego FSA is facing a budget shortfall of approximately $22,300 under the current fee schedule for
2026.  The Fuego Fire Service Area Board of Trustee’s has proposed an increase in fees from $350 to $500 for
residential structures, and from $500 to $750 for commercial structures.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Hold a public hearing. Vote to approve or deny the resolution. 

Attachments
Attachment 
Resolution 



MINUTES of meeting of the Board of Trustees for the Fuego Fire Service Area, 
Yellowstone County, MT

June 17, 2025

Board members present: Rick Cebull, JD, Jim Swain, John Gregory, MD, and Bob Ruble, MD
Guests present: Fred Morganthaler and Shawna House, both from Fuego Volunteer Fire 
Company (VFC).

The meeting was called to order at 5 pm, June 17, 2025. 

Fred Morganthaler presented his findings after extensive review of Fuego expenses and revenue. 
Corrosive well water has created the need for unbudgeted overhaul of the station water system. 
In addition, maintenance and repairs of the aging firefighting vehicles, currently being done in-
house for free, will need to be done commercially in the future, due to the age of the individual 
performing those tasks heretofore. 

With these expenses in mind, Morganthaler developed a budget for 2026 for the Fuego VFC, 
showing an expected deficit of $22,300. The board, after reviewing his findings, approved this 
budget.

While an occasional small deficit can be managed in various ways, an ongoing deficit of this size 
is not sustainable. Therefore, the Board approved the following resolution unanimously:

Resolved, the fee for fire protection in the Fuego Fire Service Area should be 
increased from a flat fee of $350 to $500 for residential structures, and from 
$500 to $750 for business structures, pursuant to Sec. 7-33-2105 (1) (d), and 
Sec. 7-33-2404 (1) M.C.A.

Signed,

Robert T. Ruble, MD, 
Lead Trustee



Resolution No. 25 – 96 

Resolution to Change Fee Schedule for Fuego Fire Service Area 

1 of 1 

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Resolution No. 25- 96 

 

Resolution to Change Fee Schedule for Fuego Fire Service Area 

 

WHEREAS, Section 7-33-2401 of the Montana Code Annotated gives a board of county commissioners the 

authority to create a fire service area.  Section 7-33-2404 of the Montana Code Annotated gives a board the 

authority to establish a fee schedule to fund the operation of the area.  The Montana Code Annotated does not 

explicitly provide the process a board should use to change a fee schedule for an area.  To allow for public 

participation in government, a board should provide the public with notice of its intent to change the fee schedule 

and provide the public with the opportunity to address the board about a change in the fee schedule.  To change a fee 

schedule, a board should pass a resolution of intent, set a public hearing, provide notice of the public hearing, 

receive written comments prior to the hearing, hold a public hearing, receive written and oral comments at the 

hearing, consider the information provided and pass a resolution. 

 

WHEREAS, the Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners created the Fuego Fire Service Area that 

provides fire protection to land north of the City of Billings.   

 

WHEREAS, the Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners would like to change the fee schedule for 

structures for the Fuego Fire Service Area due to anticipated budget shortfalls of approximately $22,300 under the 

current fee schedule for 2026.  Attached is a copy of the Fuego Fire Service Area Board of Trustee’s resolution 

showing the current and proposed fee schedule, with an increase from $350 to $500 for residential structures, and 

from $500 to $750 for commercial structures.  
 

WHEREAS, on July 29, 2025, the Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners passed a resolution of 

intent to change the fee schedule for the Fuego Fire Service Area and set a public hearing on the change for August 

12, 2021.  On August 1, 2025 and August 8, 2025, the Yellowstone County Clerk and Recorder published notice of 

the public hearing in the Yellowstone County News.  On August 12, 2025, the Board held a public hearing.  The 

Board heard comments at the hearing.  The Board considered the comments.  The Board decided it would be in the 

best interest of the public to change the fee schedule. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, 

 

The Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners changes the fee schedule for the Fuego Fire Service 

Area.  The Board adopts the proposed fee schedule attached to the resolution as the fee schedule for the Area.  The 

fee schedule shall continue until changed by the Board. 

 

Passed and Adopted on the 12th day of August 2025. 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY, MONTANA 

 
      

Mark Morse, Chair 

 

 

      

Michael J. Waters, Member   ATTEST: 

   

       

            

Chris White, Member    Jeff Martin, Clerk and Recorder 

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 1. a.        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Board Appointment
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Board Appointment - Sharon Cline to Yellowstone County Museum Board

BACKGROUND:
See Attached 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Sign and Mail

Attachments
Sharon Cline 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular 1. b.        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Term Extension for ARPA Grant Letter
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Term Extension for ARPA Grant Letter

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve or Deny

Attachments
Term Extension for ARPA Grant Letter 











   
B.O.C.C. Regular 1. c.        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Property and Casualty Agent Appointment and Agreement
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
MACo Property and Casualty Agent Appointment and Agreement
 

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
MACo Property and Casualty Agent Appointment and Agreement 









   
B.O.C.C. Regular 2. a.        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Notice of Award - MetraPark 6th Ave LED Sign IFB
Submitted For: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
Notice of Award - MetraPark 6th Ave LED Sign IFB

BACKGROUND:
An Invitation for Bids was released on July 1st, 2025 for the Metra 6th Ave LED Sign project. Bids
from Sign Products, Inc., Epcon Sign Group, Complete Signs, Yesco, LLC, and Billings Sign Guys
were opened and read aloud by the Commissioners on July 29th, 2025. A selection committee
reviewed the bids and recommended that Billings Sign Service be awarded the contract, which the
BOCC approved on August 5th, 2025.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve notice of award and return a copy to Finance.

Attachments
Notice of Award - Metra 6th Ave Sign 



Yellowstone County 

Finance Department 

Notice of Award 

Date of Issuance: August 12th, 2025 

Solicitation Title: MetraPark 6th Ave LED Sign 

Solicitation Close Date: July 28th, 2025 

Bidder: Billings Sign Service 

Bidder’s Address: 2003 Main Street, Billings, MT 59105 

This document shall serve as notifications that Billings Sign Service is the successful 
bidder for the MetraPark 6th Ave LED Sign project for the base sum of $228,300.00. A formal 
contract will follow this document. 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 2. b.        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Request to Expend - Facilities - CAB Elevator Repairs
Submitted For: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
Request to Expend - Facilities - Ostlund Building Elevator Repairs

BACKGROUND:
The Facilities Department is requesting Commissioners' approval for the purchase of services to repair
two control boards for the elevators in the Ostlund Building. The cost of this service is $42,300.00 for
labor and material. This purchase was not included in the preliminary FY26 budget, but there are
sufficient funds available in the General Fund - Building account (4050.000.599.411200.920).

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Sign RTE and repair order and return a copy to Finance.

Attachments
RTE - Elevator Repairs CAB 
Otis Repair Order 













   
B.O.C.C. Regular 2. c.        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Clark Stone RSID 916M - Dry Hydrant
Submitted For: Russell Burton, Comptroller  Submitted By: Russell Burton, Comptroller

TOPIC:
Resolution 25-97 to Create RSID 916M to Maintain Dry Hydrant in Clark Stone Commercial Subdivision

BACKGROUND:
Dry Hydrant Maintenance RSID 916M for Clark Stone Commercial Subdivision. 4 lots @ 25/yr subject
to change.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve

Attachments
Res 25-97 Clark Stone Sub 916M 



Resolution No. 25- 97 
Resolution to Create Yellowstone County Rural Special Improvement District No. 916M 

1 of 2 

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Resolution No. 25- 97 
 

Resolution to Create Yellowstone County Rural Special Improvement District No. 916M 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 7-12-2101 through 7-12-2113 of the Montana Code Annotated, a board of county 
commissioners has the authority to create a rural special improvement district to maintain public improvements such 
as roads, dry hydrants and parks. Typically, to create a district, a board should pass a resolution of intent, set a public 
hearing, provide notice of the public hearing, receive protests, hold a public hearing, consider protests and pass a 
resolution that either creates or does not create the district. 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 7-12-2102(2)(a), 7-12-2105(4) and 7-12-2113(2)(d) of the Montana Code 
Annotated, when all the landowners in a proposed district consent to the creation of a district, the board does not have 
to hold a public hearing.  The board can create a district with the passage of a resolution. 
 
WHEREAS, the Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners received a petition from Cottonwood 
Holdings, LLC, the developer of Clark Stone Commercial Subdivision in Yellowstone County to create a rural special 
improvement district to maintain the dry hydrant in Clark Stone Commercial Subdivision. Cottonwood Holdings, LLC 
owns all the land in the Subdivision. Attached as Exhibit 1 is the petition 
 
Below is a summary of the specifics of the District:  
 
District Summary 
District Name:   Yellowstone County Rural Special Improvement District No. 916M 
District Location: Parcels in Clark Stone Commercial Subdivision 
District Parcels:   4 parcels  
District Activities: Maintain Dry Hydrant in Clark Stone Commercial Subdivision 
District Costs:   $100 estimated annual 
District Assessment Method: Per Parcel 
District Assessment: Annual Assessment Per Parcel – $25 
District Duration: Indefinite 
 
Attached as Exhibit 1 is the petition for the district including the details of the District such as name, location, map, 
parcels, property owners, activities, costs, assessment method, assessment and engineer. The costs for the District and 
the assessment for the District will likely increase over time.  The Board can annually adjust the assessment. 
 
WHEREAS, the Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners received a petition to create a rural special 
improvement district to maintain the dry hydrant in Clark Stone Commercial Subdivision. The Board reviewed the 
petition. The petition appears legally sufficient. The Board believes it would be in the best interest of the public to 
create the District. All the landowners in the Subdivision consented to the creation of the District. Because all the 
landowners consent to the creation of the District, the Board does not have to hold a public hearing to create the 
District. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, 
 
The Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners creates Rural Special Improvement District No. 916M to 
maintain the dry hydrant in Clark Stone Commercial Subdivision. The specifics of the District are contained in the 
petition attached to this Resolution. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 2. d.        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Contract Amendment - As Built Updates - Cushing Terrell
Submitted For: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
Contract Amendment - As Built Updates - Cushing Terrell
 

BACKGROUND:
The Finance department is requesting Commissioners' approval for a contract amendment with
Cushing Terrell for the Ostlund Building contract. At the request of Dick Anderson, Cushing Terrell to
update project model to include box walk data provided by Dick
Anderson on July 16, 2025 for Floors 2 through 4 and 6. This proposal also includes an estimated
amount of time for the inclusion of future Floor 1 box walk data when received. The total fees for this
amendment are $4,375.00, bringing the total contract value to $1,036,951.00.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve, sign contract amendment and return a copy to Finance.

Attachments
1-G802 Mod-09 Box Walk As Built Updates - CT signed 



   Document G802®  – 2017
Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement

AIA Document G802 – 2017. Copyright © 2000, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” 
“AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 18:52:27 ET on 
08/05/2025 under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 10/01/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance 
with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA51)

1

PROJECT: (name and address) AGREEMENT INFORMATION: AMENDMENT INFORMATION:
Yellowstone County Admin. Building 
Remodel  »
2825 3rd Avenue North»
Billings, MT 59101»

Date: September 27, 2023 Amendment Number: Nine (9)

     Date: August 5, 2025

OWNER: (name and address) ARCHITECT: (name and address)
Yellowstone County »«  »
Yellowstone County Commissioners 
Billings, MT »

CTA Inc, (dba Cushing Terrell)
13 North 23rd Street
Billings MT 59101 

          

The Owner and Architect amend the Agreement as follows: 

At the request of Dick Anderson, Cushing Terrell to update project model to include box walk data provided by Dick 
Anderson on July 16, 2025 for Floors 2 through 4 and 6.  This proposal also includes an estimated amount of time for the 
inclusion of future Floor 1 box walk data when received.  Model updates for electrical content associated with the following 
RFIs is also included;

 RFI List:
• RFI 74 3rd Floor Commissioners Meeting Room Low Voltage & Power Changes
• RFI 18 Confirming Power in Basement Data Room. This RFI response added UPS circuits in all data rooms. 
• RFI 40 Grounding For Server Data Rooms
• RFI 89 Cooling Tower Control Panel & Added Breaker
• RFI 84 Moving Basement Electrical Panels
• RFI 94 Data Room & Server Walk-through Meeting Clarifications & Questions
• RFI 88 Moving Room 424 Microwave Outlet - Too Low
• RFI 75 Fire Alarm Device Clarifications in Basement & Penthouse
• RFI 15 Confirming New Lighting at North and South Stairwells

The Architect’s compensation and schedule shall be adjusted as follows: 

Compensation Adjustment: 

Hourly, estimated fee to complete, 35 hours at $125hr.  Total estimate $4,375  

Schedule Adjustment: 

None

SIGNATURES:
Cushing Terrell Yellowstone County

ARCHITECT (Firm name) OWNER (Firm name)

  



AIA Document G802 – 2017. Copyright © 2000, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” 
“AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 18:52:27 ET on 
08/05/2025 under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 10/01/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance 
with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA51)

2

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE
Jim Beal, Principal Mark Morse, Chair     
PRINTED NAME AND TITLE PRINTED NAME AND TITLE
          
DATE DATE

NATURE

August 8, 2025



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Metra Trust Check Log for July 2025
Submitted By: Tim Wombolt, Accountant

TOPIC:
Metra Trust Check Log for June 2025
 

BACKGROUND:
Metra Trust Check Log for June 2025

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Consent item for MetraPark Trust check register

Attachments
TRUST CK LOG JULY 2025 



















   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: On-Call Contract with Performance Engineering for Right of Way Inspection
Submitted For: Monica Plecker, Public Works Director 
Submitted By: Monica Plecker, Public Works Director

TOPIC:
On-Call Contract with Performance Engineering for Right of Way Inspection 
 

BACKGROUND:
Public Works utilizes on-call services related to right-of-way inspection, restoration, remediation work
related to utility installers. The contract amount is for $60,000.00. These are pass through cost that are
ultimately paid by the utility owner/permittee as a condition of their work in the right of way permit.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve and place item to file.

Attachments
Contract 



1 

Standard Form of Agreement between Owner 
and Consultant on the Basis of 

A Stipulated Price 

This agreement is dated as of the 12th day of August, 2025 by and between Yellowstone 
County, Montana (hereinafter called Owner), and Performance Engineering. 
(hereinafter called Consultant). 

Owner and Consultant, in consideration of the material covenants hereinafter set forth, agree 
as follows: 

1. Scope of Work: On-call services related to right of restoration, remediation and
inspection services.

2. Contract shall be effective immediately.

3. Contract Price

Owner shall pay the Consultant based on Time and Materials in an amount not
to exceed $60,000.00

The Consultant should submit their invoices directly to Yellowstone County Public
Works upon satisfactory completion of services for the period being invoiced.

A fee schedule is attached.

4. Consultants Representation

4.1 Consultant has examined and reviewed the Contract documents and other
related paperwork. 

4.2 Consultant is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state and local 
laws and regulations that may affect cost, progress, performance and 
furnishing of the work.  

4.4 Consultant has given Owner written notice of all conflicts, errors, 
ambiguities or discrepancies that Consultant has discovered in the 
Contract Documents and that the Contract Documents are generally  
sufficient to indicate and convey the understanding of all terms and 
conditions for performance and furnishings of the work.     



2 

5. Contract Documents

The Contract Documents, which comprise the entire agreement between Owner
and Consultant, consist of the following:

5.1 This Agreement. 
5.2 Consultants Fee Schedule 
5.3 Consultant’s Certificate of Insurance and Workers Compensation 

coverage. 

6. Miscellaneous

6.1 No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the 
Contract Documents will be binding on another party hereto without the 
written consent of the party sought to be bound; and specifically but without 
limitation, moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may not 
be assigned without written consent (except to the extent that the effect of 
this restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the 
contrary in any written consent to an assignment no assignment will 
discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract 
Documents. 

6.2 Consultant, shall maintain at its sole cost and expense, commercial 
general liability insurance naming Yellowstone County as additional 
insured against liability for damages for bodily injury, including death and 
completed operations and property damages in a minimum amount of 
Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($750,000.00) for each claim and 
One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars , ($1,500,000.00), in the 
aggregate arising from incidents which occur as the result of Consultants 
negligence while performing any work or service and for which 
Yellowstone County, sole basis of liability is vicarious liability for the acts 
or omissions of the Consultant or/and sub-Consultants.  Consultant shall 
maintain at its cost and expense, insurance against claims for injuries to 
persons or damages to property, including contractual liability which may 
arise from or in connection with work or service by Consultant, agents, 
employees, representatives, assigns and sub-Consultants.  This 
insurance shall cover claims as may be caused by any negligent act or 
omission.  The policy of insurance shall be an occurrence policy with a 
Best Rating of A- or better and must be in force throughout the period. 

Consultant shall name on the Certificate of liability insurance 
Yellowstone County, as additional insured for on-site work or 
Maintenance Service.  In addition, Consultant will furnish to Yellowstone 



3 
 

County a copy of the policy endorsement, CG 32 87 05 10, indicating 
that Yellowstone County, are named as an additional insured under the 
Consultants insurance policy. 
 
Consultant agrees to furnish both the Certificate of insurance and policy                  
endorsement at least ten (10) days prior to beginning work. 
 
Consultant agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless Yellowstone 
County from and against any and all claims demands, obligations causes 
of action, lawsuits and all damages and liabilities fines, judgments, costs, 
(including settlement costs), and expenses associated therewith 
(including reasonable attorney’s fees and disbursements), arising from 
incidents that occur the result of Consultants negligence. And for which 
Yellowstone County, sole basis of liability is vicarious liability for the acts 
or omissions of Consultant.  The defense and indemnification obligations 
under this paragraph of the Invitation to Bid shall not be limited by any 
assertions or finding that Yellowstone County, is liable for any damages 
by reason of a non-delegable duty.    

 
 
6.3 Consultant is required to maintain workers compensation insurance, or 

an independent Consultant’s exemption issued by the Montana 
Department of Labor covering Consultant and Consultant’s employees.  
Consultant is not, nor is Consultant’s workers, employees of Yellowstone 
County.  Workers Compensation insurance or the exemption from the 
workers compensation obligation must be valid for the entire period.  

 
 
6.4 Owner and Consultant each binds itself, its partners, successors, assign 

and legal representative to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, 
assign and legal representative to respect to all covenants, agreements and 
obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

 
 
  6.5    Consultant must give preference to the employment of bona fide residents  

                       of Montana in the performance of this work.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
 
 

6.6    All work and materials must be warranted for a period of one year from                 
 date of installation.  

 
 

6.7    The Parties agree that the laws of the State of Montana shall govern this                 
 contract, and that venue shall be in the Thirteenth Judicial District 



4 
 

 Court, Yellowstone County, Montana   
 
 
                     6.8     Consultant agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the County  

against all claims for injuries to person or damages to property occurred 
from or in Connection with the Consultants performance under the 
Agreement. 

 
6.9 In the event of litigation between Consultant and the County, the  
            Prevailing party shall be entitled to reimbursement of Court costs and 
            Reasonable Attorney fees by the non-prevailing party. 
 
7.0 The Consultant must, in performance of work under this contract, fully 

comply with all applicable federal, state or local laws, rules, regulations, 
including the Montana Human Rights Act, Civil Rights Act of 1964, The 
Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and the American with Disabilities Act of 
1990. Any subletting or subcontracting by the Consultant subjects 
Consultants to the same provisions.  In accordance with section 49-3-207, 
MCA, the Consultant agrees that the hiring of persons to perform the 
contract will be made on the basis of merit and qualification and there will 
be no discrimination based upon race, color, religion, creed, political ideas, 
sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, or national origin by 
the person performing under the contract. 

 
8.0 SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION 

 
8.1    Without terminating this Agreement, the COUNTY may suspend the 

CONSULTANT’s Services following written notice to the 
CONSULTANT.  On the suspension date specified in the notice, the 
CONSULTANT shall have ceased its Services in an orderly manner.  The 
CONSULTANT shall be reimbursed for all reasonable costs incurred and 
unpaid for Services rendered through the suspension date specified in the 
notice, but in no case will the CONSULTANT be paid for Services 
rendered after the date of such suspension.  If resumption of the 
CONSULTANT’s Services requires any waiver or change in this 
Agreement, any such waiver or change shall require the written agreement 
of all parties, and the writing shall be attached as an addendum to this 
Agreement. 

 
8.2   The COUNTY shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, in whole 

or in part, at any time during the course of performance by providing 30 
days written notice to the CONSULTANT.  On the termination date 
specified in the notice, the CONSULTANT shall have ceased its Services 
in an orderly manner.  If a new Consultant is retained to, or the COUNTY 
will itself, complete the Services, the CONSULTANT will cooperate fully 
with the COUNTY in preparing the new Consultant or the COUNTY itself 



5 

to take over completion of the Services on the specified termination 
date.  The CONSULTANT will be reimbursed for all reasonable costs 
incurred and unpaid for Services rendered in conformance with this 
Agreement through the date of termination specified in the COUNTY’s 
notice to the CONSULTANT, but in no case will the CONSULTANT be 
paid for Services rendered after the date of such termination. 

8.3    In the event of a material breach of this Agreement by the COUNTY, the 
CONSULTANT shall have the right to terminate this Agreement thirty (30) 
days after written notice to the COUNTY specifying such material breach, 
unless the COUNTY has cured such material breach within said period. 

8.4    This Agreement may be terminated without cause by either party. In that 
event, the party seeking to terminate said Agreement must give ninety 
(90) days written notice to the other party of the intent to terminate the
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, OWNER and CONSULTANT have signed this Agreement in 
duplicate.  One counterpart each will be delivered to OWNER and CONSULTANT.  All portions 
of the Contract Documents have been signed, initialed or identified by OWNER and 
CONSULTANT.  

This Agreement will be effective August 12, 2025. 

OWNER:     CONSULTANT: 

Yellowstone County      Performance Engineering 
Billings, MT 59101      Billings, MT 59102 

________________________________       __________________________________ 
Mark Morse      Scott Aspenlieder  
Chair, Board of County Commissioners     Owner 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: YCDF-Summit Foods Pricing Agreement - revised
Submitted By: Carol Redler

TOPIC:
Revised Summit Foods Pricing Agreement Effective 7/1/25
 

BACKGROUND:
Revised version reflects the elimination of the auto-renewal clause.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve & sign.

Attachments
Summit FY26 



Page 1 of 2 
 

AMENDMENT #5 TO THE STANDARD FORM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER 
AND CONTRACTOR ON THE BASIS OF A STIPULATED PRICE 

This Amendment is made and entered into by and between Yellowstone County Detention Facility 
(“Client”), and Summit Food Service, LLC (“Company”) (collectively “the Parties”). 

 WHEREAS, the Parties have entered into a certain Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner 
and Contractor on the Basis of a Stipulated Price (the “Agreement”), effective July 1, 2021; 

 WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to extend the Agreement with a pricing adjustment; and  

 WHEREAS, the Parties now desire to amend said Agreement upon the terms and conditions stated 
herein. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties, intending to be legally bound hereby, mutually agree as follows: 

 

1. Term. This Agreement shall be extended for an additional year beginning July 1, 2025.  

2. Payment Arrangement. Per section 5.1 of the Agreement, pricing shall be amended to reflect that 
Company shall charge per the following scale: 

 

Population 
Current 

Price 
5.0% CPI 
Increase 

New Price 
Per Meal 

7500-8000 $1.925 $0.096 $2.021 

8001-8500 $1.871 $0.094 $1.965 

8501-9000 $1.820 $0.091 $1.911 

9001-9500 $1.775 $0.089 $1.864 

9501-10000 $1.734 $0.087 $1.821 

10001-10500 $1.696 $0.085 $1.781 

10501-11000 $1.659 $0.083 $1.742 

11001-11500 $1.634 $0.082 $1.716 

11501-12000 $1.609 $0.080 $1.689 

12001-12500 $1.588 $0.079 $1.667 

Staff Meal $2.309 $0.115 $2.424 

 

 

 

3. Payment Methods. Section 5. of the Agreement shall be modified to include sub-section “5.2 
Payment Method” with the following language:  



Page 2 of 2 
 

Payment method shall be electronic via AFT/ACH transfer or another acceptable electronic 
method agreed upon between the parties. Any change of banking information or change in the 
method of monies being transmitted or received shall be documented in hard copy (printed on 
paper) and delivered by hand, via certified or registered mail return receipt requested, or by 
overnight delivery service with a receipt of delivery, provided that such delivery is to the parties 
per Notice. In the alternative, the Company, at its discretion, may request verification by phone 
of any change of banking information or change in the method of monies being transmitted or 
received. 
 

This Amendment is effective as of July 1, 2025. All other terms and conditions of the original Agreement 
(as modified from time to time) shall remain in full force and effect unless otherwise amended as provided 
in the Agreement.  

 

CLIENT: Yellowstone County Detention Facility COMPANY: Summit Food Service, LLC 

 

Signature:  Signature: 
      

Name:    Name:    

Title:    Title:    

Date:    Date:     

 

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 6. a.        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Accusource Agreement
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Accusource Agreement

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve or deny. 

Attachments
Accusource Agreement 



ccuSeurce 
Phone: +1 (888) 649-6272 

Fax: +1 (888) 649-6244 

TM Web: www.accusourcehr.com 

Addendum to Attachment B 

Scope of Services and Fee Schedule 

All pricing herein was effective 7/1/2025 as per email notification 

Company Yellowstone County Date: 07 I 30 I 2025 

Name: 

Sales Rep: Shannon Jordan Email: customersuccesstaz@accusourcehr.com 

Contact (951) 734-8882 

Phone: 

Yellowstone County - Standard Package 
Social Scccurity Trace (SST) 

Annual 

Volume: 

County Crirninal Direct Search - 7 year search, all names and counl.les based on the Social Security 

Trace (SST) and provided 

Integrated NatirJnal Criminal Database - all names based on the Social Security Trace (SST) and 

provided 

• National Wants and Warrants 

• Multi-State/National Database Criminal Search 

• Nationwide Sex Offender Search 

• OFAC and additional government databases 

Ye llowstone County - Standard+ MVR Package 
SCJcial Security Trace (SST) 

County Criminal Direct Search - 7-year search, all names and counties based CJn the SCJcial Security 

T1 ace (SST) and provided 

lmegrat.E,d National Criminal Database - all names based on the Social Security Trace (SST) and 

provided: 

• National Wants and Warrants 

• Multi-State/National Database Criminal Search 

• Nationwide Sex Offender Search 

• OFAC and add itional government databases 
Motor Vehicle Records - One state driver license search of the current state of lie ensure 

07 I 30 / 2025 CW 

$35.44 

$40.50 



urce TM 

Yellowstone County - MVR Only - Annua l Screens 

Phone: +1 (888) 649-6272 

Fax: +1 (888) 649-6244 

Web: www.accusourcehr.com 

$5.07 

Motor Vehicle Records - One state driver license search of the current state of 

licensu re 

Motor Vehicle Record (Per State) 

Service: A sea rch of the state Bureau of Motor Vehicle 

records for drive r information . 

Social Security Number Trace (SST) 

Service: A search of credit headers and other database 

sources to provide history of the applicant's names and 

addresses as they originate from cred it headers. SST is 

recommended as the sea rch criterion identifier for 

cr iminal history searches . 

Database verification fee, if app licab le 

Verification of hits on criminal database at the appropriate 

Jurisdiction . Does not include applicable court access fees. h,r 

FCRA compliance, all hits on National Crimmai Database MUST be 

verified at r.he actual court of jurisdiction. 

Additional Research Fee 
Add itional fee for direct app licant contact or extended research 

beyond the standard product scope. Rate is applied per file (not 

07 I 30 / 2025 CW 

Most states instant $5.07 

A few Hours - Same Day $3.80 

N/A $7.50 

N/A $7.50 



ccuS0urce ~ TM 

ind1v1dual component.) 

Annua l Data and Security Fee N/A 

Phone: +1 (888) 649-6272 

Fax: +1 (888) 649-6244 

Web: www.accusourcehr.com 

$100.00 

International Criminal Services are available with individual country/territory pricing provided upon 

request. 

Prices do not include court fees, third party verification charge which may apply when an employer or educational 

institution has outsourced management of their records or MVR state fees. All alias and or all address searches 

include all jurisdictions and true alias names identified on the Social Security Trace unless otherwise defined. Due to 

the name-based filing system used by the courts, all court research is conducted on a per-name basis. There is an 

additional charge for searching AKA's or alias names unless bundled in a package to include all true alias 

names. There is a $1 . 00 fee for a canceled file. If any service is processed prior to cancellation, the service is charged 

to the file. Due to market volatility, International rates are subject to change. Drug testing and/or medical services 

pricing includes collection and/or medical services at an in-network facility or collection site and confirmation by the 

MRO if necessary. An additional out of network collection and service at an out of network Jee may apply and are 

subject to change without notice. "Hits" from criminal database searches must be venfied at the court of jurisdiction 

to meet FCRA requirements, additional charges will apply. 

Notes: 

* Al l court and data base searches are priced per name. Any additional name will be the same price as the 

searches requested. 

I agree to the pricing provided above and desire to initiate account set-up at this time. 

AccuSource Represe ntative : Sign Here J/cauuou. Jo-rdau 
Shannon Jordan 

Name: 

Title: 
VP, Customer Success 

Date: 
7/30/2025 

07 I 30 I 2025 CW 



ccuS • urceH TM 

Human Resources : ~ 
Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

Sign Here 

Phone: +1 (888) 649-6272 

Fax: +1 (888) 649-6244 

Web : www.accusourcehr.com 

Approved by the Board of County Commissioners of Yellowstone County, MT this the _ day of __ 2025. 

ATTEST BOCC Commissioners : 
Chairman 

Member 

Clerk and Recorder 
Member 

Pncing subject to change with 30-day written notice. 

07 I 30 / 2025 CW 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 6. b.        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Benefit Report Letters
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Benefit Report Letters

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
Benefit Letters 







   
B.O.C.C. Regular 6. c.        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: PARS
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
PERSONNEL ACTION REPORTS - District Court - 1 Appointment, Human Resources - 1
Appointment; Sheriff's Office - 1 Termination: Youth Services Center - 1 Salary & Other

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
PARS 
PAR 











   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Payroll Audit
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Payroll Audit
 

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Place to file. 

Attachments
Payroll Audit 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular 2. a.        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Board Minutes
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Board Minutes - County Water District of Billings Heights

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Place to file. 

Attachments
June County Water District of Billings Height Board Minutes 



  1 

COUNTY WATER DISTRICT OF BILLINGS HEIGHTS 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

 June 18th, 2025 at 6:00 PM 

County Water District of Billings Heights 1540 Popelka Dr., Board room 
 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
The meeting is open to any interested member of the public. Agendas are prepared for 
the meetings; agendas may be requested from the General Manager and are available at 
https://heightswaterdistrict.com/agendas-and-minutes. Agenda packets, due to their 
size, will not be printed off for the meetings or at the public's request. The public can 
access and view the agenda packet online and can download them or print them at their 
own expense. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER: Director Kary called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS:  

Board Members present: Dir. Essmann, Dir. Kary, Dir. Ewalt, Dir. Erpenbach, Dir. 
Ellis, Dir. Graves 

Staff members present: Bo Andersson, Josh Simpson, Lena Loftsgaard 

Also Present: Tom Zurbuchen, Evelyn Piburn, John Kaderavek, Mark Koarber, Jim 
Kane, Karie Kane, Bob Ellis (Online) 

President’s Remarks: Read by Doug Kary 

During the course of the meeting the Public may be heard before a vote is cast by the 
Board President will acknowledge the Public once a motion has been made and 
discussed by the Board for their input. The President will recognize speakers who raise 
their hand. Once recognized, the Speaker should move to the side of the board table so 
comments may be heard, please identify yourself by name and please spell your last 
name. You will be allowed to comment for up to three minutes. Each speaker will have 
one opportunity to speak on the agenda item. Once the public comment period is over 
there will be no additional comments unless specifically requested by the President or 
presiding officer of the meeting. 

1. Directors e-mail accounts – have been redone. 
2. CWDBH Press Release (Pg. 3-4).  

Public Comment on non-agenda items: None 

Agenda Approval 

Dir. Ellis moves to approve the agenda as written. Dir. Ewalt seconds. 

Vote: Motion passes unanimously.  



  2 

Approval of May 21st to June 4th minutes  

Dir. Ewalt moves to approve both May 21st and June 4th minutes. Second by Dir 
Erpenbach 

Public Comment: Tom Zurbuchen says that state law requires the director’s votes to 
be recorded in the minutes. Mr. Zurbuchen asks for the individual votes to be recorded 
in the June 4th minutes.  

Discussion was had regarding the June 4th minutes. Dir. Kary asked the board secretary 
to update the minutes to include the individual votes.  

Dir. Ewalt amends his motion to approve both May 21st and June 4th minutes as 
amended. 

Vote to approve May 21 as written and June 4th as amended: 

Motion carries unanimously. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Dir. Ellis moves to segregate items #6 Stifel Statement (Pg. 23-25) and #7 Montana 
Board of Investments, STIP (Pg. 46-47) from the consent agenda in order to ask a 
question. 

Dir. Graves moves to approve Consent agenda items #1 - #5. Dir. Ewalt seconds. 

Public comment: None. 

Vote to approve item #1-#5: Motion passed unanimously. 

Dir Ellis asks Mr. Andersson about the May agenda regarding the moving of funds to 
STIP. 

Mr. Aderson clarifies that the money was put into STIP until an investment proposal can 
be voted on.  

Dir. Ellis moves to accept items #6 Stifel Statement (Pg. 23-25) and #7 Montana Board 
of Investments, STIP (Pg. 46-47). Dir. Erpenbach seconds. 

Vote: Motion carries unanimously. 

Manager’s Report: Mr. Bo Anderson 

Dir. Ewalt asks for an update regarding the leak. 

Mr. Andersson talks about the new water meter and the promising first few readings. 
Says it is too soon to call it a trend.  

Dir. Ewalt asked about additional leaks found by the consultant. 

Mr. Andersson confirmed that three additional leaks were discovered by the consultant. 
He said that two are highly suspect and the third is lukewarm.  



  3 

Further discussion was had regarding the status of the leaks. 

Dir. Ellis asked about item #5 on the manager’s report. Wanted to ensure that the board 
was aware of all requirements for rate adjustments.  

Mr. Simpson says they are looking at the specific laws and requirements. 

Dir. Ellis asks about checking the fire hydrants 

Mr. Andersson confirms that they are still checking and performing maintenance on the 
fire hydrants. 

Dir. Ellis asks about any damage to district vehicles in Shepard from the recent storm. 

Mr. Andersson confirms one vehicle was damaged. 

Public comment: 

John Kaderavek Asked to clarify that the meter brought the readings down to the 10% 
range. 

Mr. Andersson explained that it was not the meter. Upgrading the meter to ensure 
consistent readings was beneficial to finding the leaks.  

OLD BUSINESS 

Item #1: Consolidation Study progress report 

Dir. Ewalt discussed an email he sent to Travis Harris with the City of Billings regarding 
the lapse in data from the city. The Heights Water District’s MOA with the City of 
Billings will run out on June 30th. A memorandum of understanding was sent to the city 
with new dates as follows: 

• Staffing considerations – Draft TM by End of June. 
• Financial Analysis – Draft TM July 9 
• Discission of Financial Analysis Teams Meeting (Week of July 14) 

Item #2: Interstate Engineering Monthly Report (Pg. 32-37) 

Mr. Andersson gave an update regarding Interstate Engineering. He had a meeting with 
Interstate Engineering and the City of Billings regarding the second connection 
alternative in the PER. The main debate is over sizing, connection, and the maxflow.  

Dir. Kary asks if they can expect another estimate by the end of June. 

Mr. Andersson confirms. 

Item #3: Water leak project update (Pg. 38-42) 

Mr. Andersson says loss ratio on the 18th was 2.9%. The average is down significantly 
from what it was. By July they should be able to confirm whether this is a trend. 

Dir. Ewalt asks if the consultant looked at Wicks or Hilltop. 



  4 

Mr. Andersson says they knew there would be a leak on Main Street, so they had him 
start there.  

Item #4: City rate review 

a. Raftelis Report (Pg. 46-47) 

Mr. Andersson talked about his meeting with the City of Billings and possible legal 
action. He said that the way the City of Billings is passing the cost of its new water 
treatment plant to the Heights Water District is unfair and recommends pursuing 
arbitration. Phase one would cost $30,000 to $40,000 in preparation for arbitration.  

Discussion was had regarding the extent of the proposed legal action and a potential 
closed board meeting. 

Dir. Kary moves that the board fund up to $40,000 to prepare for arbitration if needed. 
Dir. Graves seconds. 

Dir Ewalt says he cannot vote in favor without further information. 

Public comment: John Kaderavek says that he believes that the board is on the right 
track. He was disquieted by the packet from the City of Billings. 

Tom Zurbuchen says he agrees with John. He states that you cannot begin depreciating 
something until it is owned and that the City of Billings is attempting to depreciate 
incorrectly.  

Vote to fund up to $40,000 to prepare for arbitration: Dirs. Kary, Erpenbach, 
and Graves approve. Dirs. Ewalt and Ellis oppose. 

Motion passes 3 - 2 

Point of order: Tom Zurbuchen says that state law requires that all resolutions be passed 
by a majority of the board. He claims that four members is a majority and that three 
members in favor is not enough for a resolution to pass. 

Dir. Kary replies that they have a quorum.  

Dir Kary, acting Chairman, rules that the motion passes 3 – 2 with the quorum present. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Item #1: Rate increase (Pg. 43).  

Mr. Andersson discusses the proposed rate increase for physical year 2026. He suggests 
that the board accept the proposed August 1st rate increase. 

Dir. Kary states that he does not believe that they can get the rate increase enacted by 
August 1. 

Discussion was had about the proposed timeline and the legal requirements to enact the 
rate change. 

Lena Loftsgaard
Maybe?

Lena Loftsgaard
Brought in for informational purposes



  5 

Dir. Ellis says that she believes that system development fees are illegal.  

Dir. Graves moves to accept the rate increases. Dir. Kary seconds. 

Dir. Ewalt says he cannot find the fire line cost. Mentions that St. Bernard’s couldn’t get 
their fire line shut off when they had a major leak because they didn’t know there was a 
fire line in the church. He suggests that the fire line item is not being used competently.  

Mr. Andersson replies that it’s about the capacity of the system and ensuring that the 
systems remain operational. 

Dir Kary moves to amend the motion to exclude fire line fee and system development 
fee. Seconded by Dir. Ellis.  

Public Comment: Tom Zurbuchen says that the system development fee has not 
changed. He states that the change is in water special fees and fire line fees.  

Vote to accept the rate increase proposal: Motion passes unanimously 

Vote to accept the motion as amended: Motion passes unanimously 

Item #2: RFP for rate study - Resolution 026-25 (Pg. 44)  

Dir. Erpenbach moves to accept Resolution 026-25. 

Discussion was had regarding the time frame of the rate study.  

Dir. Ewalt seconds. 

Dir. Ellis restates that the system development fees are illegal. The law requires a 
committee, not just a consultant.  

Mr. Anderson responds that was not the intent of the law. There is some flexibility. 

Dir. Ellis says there is no flexibility in following the law. 

Public comment: Tom Zurbuchen says Dir. Ellis is incorrect. He says the rate study 
from three years ago had no money to do the northwest transmission line. It had 
engineering to get to where we are now.  

Vote to accept Resolution 026-25: Motion carries unanimously 

Item #3: Replacement member to the Consolidation Committee 

Dir Kary states that Dir. Essmann has recommended Dir. Graves to fill Dir. Crubera’s 
old role on the consolidation committee. 

Dir. Graves says he cannot accept unless he receives a written schedule. 

Item #4: Extension of MOA timeline for Consolidation Study Report (Pg. 
48) 

Lena Loftsgaard
I was asked by Director Ellis to include the name of the resolutions for the purpose of clarity. I looked up the resolution in the agenda packet and did not find a name other than Resolution 026-25. Any insight as to what you were wanting included would be appreciated



  6 

Dir. Kary stated that item #4 was already covered in the old business portion of the 
meeting. 

Item# 5: June 9th, 2025, letter from the City of Billings (Pg. 45) 

Discussion was had regarding the Information given to the board.  

Dir. Ellis says that she made a public information request and received five years of 
correspondence regarding the West End Water Plant.  

Dir Ewalt moves to accept the extension as printed to the MOA. Dir. Graves seconds.  

Public comment: Tom Zurbuchen urges the board to amend it to August 31 rather 
than December 31. 

Vote to accept the extension of the MOA: Motion passed unanimously. 

Announcements: 

There will be a tour of the West End Water Treatment Plant for board members and 
press on June 25th at 9 a.m. 

ADJOURN: 8:05 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

Board Secretary, Lena 
Loftsgaard 

 

 

 

Board President, Jeff 
Essmann 
 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 2. b.        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Montana Department of Revenue 2025 Certified Taxable Values
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Montana Department of Revenue Certified Taxable Values
 

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Place to file. 

Attachments
2025 Certified Taxable Values 





























































































   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Checks and Disbursements for July 2025
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Checks and Disbursements for July 2025
 

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Place to file. 

Attachments
Checks and Disbursements for July 















   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Response to Audit Findings - August 7, 2025
Submitted By: Amy Mills

TOPIC:
July 16 - July 31 Payroll Audit
 

BACKGROUND:
na

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
na

Attachments
Audit Findings 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 08/12/2025  
Title: Material Contract with Fisher Sand & Gravel 
Submitted For: Monica Plecker, Public Works Director 
Submitted By: Trasee Field, Senior Secretary

TOPIC:
Material Contract with Fisher Sand & Gravel

BACKGROUND:
Material Contract with Fisher Sand & Gravel

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve

Attachments
Contract 














	Agenda
	AI 15311 Sheriff's Office Promotions
	AI 15312 Bid Opening for Yellowstone County Legal Advertising
	AI 15309 Resolution to Change Fee Schedule for the Fuego Fire Service Area
	       ATT_Attachment
	       ATT_Resolution 
	AI 15298 Board Appointment
	       ATT_Sharon Cline
	AI 15307 Term Extension for ARPA Grant Letter
	       ATT_Term Extension for ARPA Grant Letter
	AI 15328 Property and Casualty Agent Appointment and Agreement
	       ATT_MACo Property and Casualty Agent Appointment and Agreement
	AI 15313 Notice of Award - MetraPark 6th Ave LED Sign IFB
	       ATT_Notice of Award - Metra 6th Ave Sign
	AI 15310 Request to Expend - Facilities - CAB Elevator Repairs
	       ATT_RTE - Elevator Repairs CAB
	       ATT_Otis Repair Order
	AI 15322 Clark Stone RSID 916M - Dry Hydrant
	       ATT_Res 25-97 Clark Stone Sub 916M
	AI 15323 Contract Amendment - As Built Updates - Cushing Terrell
	       ATT_1-G802 Mod-09 Box Walk As Built Updates - CT signed
	AI 15305 Metra Trust Check Log for July 2025
	       ATT_TRUST CK LOG JULY 2025
	AI 15284 On-Call Contract with Performance Engineering for Right of Way Inspection
	       ATT_Contract
	AI 15321 YCDF-Summit Foods Pricing Agreement - revised
	       ATT_Summit FY26
	AI 15306 Accusource Agreement
	       ATT_Accusource Agreement
	AI 15314 Benefit Report Letters
	       ATT_Benefit Letters
	AI 15318 PARS
	       ATT_PARS
	       ATT_PAR
	AI 15320 Payroll Audit
	       ATT_Payroll Audit
	AI 15315 Board Minutes
	       ATT_June County Water District of Billings Height Board Minutes
	AI 15316 Montana Department of Revenue 2025 Certified Taxable Values
	       ATT_2025 Certified Taxable Values
	AI 15317 Checks and Disbursements for July 2025
	       ATT_Checks and Disbursements for July 
	AI 15319 Response to Audit Findings - August 7, 2025
	       ATT_Audit Findings
	AI 15308 Material Contract with Fisher Sand & Gravel 
	       ATT_Contract

